
POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Page 1 of 2 

 

 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
DATE:  September 4, 2024 
TIME:  9:00 a.m. 
PLACE: Polk County Courthouse, Dallas, Oregon 
 

THE LOCATION OF THIS MEETING IS ADA ACCESSIBLE. PLEASE ADVISE THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS AT (503-623-8173), AT LEAST 24 HOURS IN ADVANCE, OF ANY SPECIAL 

ACCOMMODATIONS NEEDED TO ATTEND OR TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING VIRTUALLY. 

 
PAGE:         AGENDA ITEMS 
 
  1. CALL TO ORDER AND NOTE OF ATTENDANCE 

  
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 
(a) Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. Each meeting 

is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and 
is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principal subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant 
to ORS 192.640, the Board may consider and take action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda.  The Board 
also holds a department staff meeting at 9:00am on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 
Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. 
 

(b) The Grand Ronde Sanitary District Board is meeting on September 18, 2024 at 9:15 a.m. The meeting will take place 
in the Polk County Courthouse, 850 Main Street, Dallas, OR, 97338. 

 
 

 
 

 

  3. COMMENTS (for items not on this agenda and limited to 3 minutes) 

  4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

  5. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM August 21, 2024   

  6.  APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 

  7.  PROCLAMATION NO. 24-04 IN THE MATTER OF VOTERS REGISTRATION 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

a) Polk County Ordinance No. 24-05, In the matter of PA 24-01 & ZC 24-01 
(Sidney Mulder, Planning Manager) 
 

b) Polk County Resolution No. 24-10, In the matter of adopting the updated Polk County 
Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan 
(Eric Knudson, Senior Planner) 

 
c) Declaring Surplus Property 

(Todd Whitaker, Public Works Director) 
 

 
 

  
 

                                         

 

                              THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS WILL MEET IN EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 PURSUANT TO ORS 192.660. 
 
  ADJOURNMENT 

    
    

 



POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

   POLK COUNTY PUBLIC MEETINGS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 

GUIDELINE FOR CITIZENS 
***************************** 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
 

Regular meetings of the Polk County Board of Commissioners convene at 9 a.m. each Wednesday morning. Any 
person wishing to bring a matter before the Board at one of these meetings may do so by mailing or delivering 
written notice, concisely describing the nature of the item, to the Board of Commissioners, Polk County Courthouse, 
Dallas, Oregon 97338, by noon on the preceding Thursday. Unless otherwise announced, meetings are held in the 
Main Conference Room of the Courthouse. 

***************************** 

APPEARANCE OF INTERESTED CITIZENS 

 

The Board sets aside a time at each regular meeting for comment by the public on subjects not appearing on the 
Agenda. Individuals may come forward and make any statement they wish, but not to exceed three (3) minutes in 
length, except as is required to give concise answers to questions from Board members. If the subject will require 
a lengthier presentation, or merits inclusion as an item on the Agenda of a future meeting, the Board shall schedule 
it accordingly. 

***************************** 
PUBLIC HEARING FORMAT 

Land Use 
 
1. Chairman opens hearing. 
 a. Reading of hearing request or appeal statement. 
 b. Call for abstentions (ex parte contact or conflict of interest). 
2. County staff presents background, summary and its recommendation (20-minute limit). 
3. Applicant (Appellant) presents his/her case (15-minute limit). 
4.  Public testimony. Note that all testimony and evidence must be directed toward the applicable factual and 

legal criteria as identified in the record and/or during this hearing. Do not repeat previous testimony. Simply 
note for the record that you are in agreement with that earlier testimony. Your time to present testimony is 
limited. FAILURE TO RAISE AN ISSUE IN THIS HEARING, IN PERSON OR BY LETTER, OR FAILURE 
TO PROVIDE ADEQUATE SPECIFICITY TO AFFORD THE BOARD AN OPPORTUNITY TO RESPOND 
TO THE ISSUE MAY PRECLUDE LATER APPEAL TO LUBA ON THAT ISSUE. 

 a. Individuals in favor of the application or appeal. 
 b. Individuals against the application or appeal. At the discretion of the Chairman, an attorney, 

consultant, or other designated representative of two or more individuals may be allowed the 
combined time for each represented individual who does not speak, not to exceed 20 minutes. The 
Chairman may require proof of designation. 

5. Rebuttal by Applicant (Appellant) (10-minute limit). 
6. Questions from Board (discussion limited to individuals questioned by the Board).  
 a. Staff. 
 b. Applicant (Appellant). 
 c. Individuals testifying. 
7. Chairman closes hearing and announces closing of Record. 
8. Chairman announces date for deliberation and decision. 
9. The Board's decision is deemed the final decision of Polk County. It may be appealed to LUBA within 21 

days of its issuance in written form. The address and phone number of LUBA may be obtained from the Polk 
County Community Development Department and will also appear on the Notice of Decision which will be 
mailed to all persons who testify, submit comments, or print their name and address on the hearing 
attendance sheet at the back of the hearing room. 

 

 



 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
MINUTES August 21, 2024  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER & ATTENDANCE 

At 9:00 a.m., Commissioner Pope declared the meeting of the Polk County Board of Commissioners 
to be in session. and Commissioner Gordon was present and Commissioner Mordhorst was absent. 
 
Staff present: 
  Morgan Smith, County Counsel 
  Matt Hawkins, Administrative Services Director 
          
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. 
Each meeting is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each 
meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principle 
subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, The Board may consider and take 
action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda. The Board also holds a department staff meeting 
at 9:00 a.m. on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 Main Street, Dallas, 
Oregon.  
 

 
3. COMMENTS 
 None. 
 

 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER GORDON MOVED, COMMISSIONER POPE SECONDED, TO 
APPROVE THE AGENDA. 

 
    MOTION PASSED BY VOTE OF THE QUORUM.  
 
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF August 14, 2024 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER GORDON MOVED, COMMISSIONER POPE SECONDED, TO 
APPROVE THE MINUTES OF August 14, 2024. 

 
    MOTION PASSED BY VOTE OF THE QUORUM.  
 
 
6. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER GORDON MOVED, COMMISSIONER POPE SECONDED, TO 
APPROVE THE CONSENT CALENDAR. 

      
    MOTION PASSED BY VOTE OF THE QUORUM. 
 
 
7. CHEMEKETA COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOND PRESENTATION 
 Dr. Jessica Howard, President & CEO of Chemeketa Community College, along with Jackie 

Franke, Teresa Haskens, Besty Earls and explained why they were here today. Dr. Howard 
then shared a PowerPoint presentation with the Board and staff. The presentation went over 
the value of the community college, opportunities, CTE quality, Chemeketa Scholars Program, 
Successes and Innovations. Mrs. Howard then went over the 2008 Bond Levy and explained 
that it was going to be up for reauthorization. She stated that the average tax rate for 2008 was 
$0.27 per $1000 and the projected rate for 2024 would stay the same. The 2008 Bond Levy is 
set to end in 2026 and the reauthorization if approved by the public would be for $140 million 
and for 15-20 years. She stated they held 17 external community conversations and what they 
learned from those conversations and community polling. Dr. Howard went over what exactly 
this Bond Measure would fund and stated it would increase capacity in career and technical 



August 21, 2024 
Page 2 

 

  

education, specifically in healthcare, the trades, and emergency services programming. They 
are also going to use the funds for wellness and disaster preparedness by renovating Building 
7 on the Salem Campus to support wellness programming in addition to physical education and 
to function as a community disaster relief site. Dr. Howard shared several other examples of 
what they plan to use these funds for.  

 
 Mrs. Haskens stated that she is recently retired from PGE and the reason she said yes to Chair 

and Co-Chair on this Board is because Chemeketa is such a huge part of our community and 
it touches every single one of us without us even realizing it. She wanted to emphasize why this 
bond is so important. Mrs. Franke stated that she wanted to add to the fact that they have an 
excellent President and excellent staff and she is so proud they are able to stretch their funds 
and use them so wisely while creating so many important programs. She wanted to touch on 
the diesel mechanics programs and how it took several years to get it approved but after the 
first year of students completed it, with one year to go, those students all had a full-time job and 
she wanted to make sure people understand how important these programs are. Mrs. Earle 
wanted to share in her support for this bond and shared some other positive examples.  

 
 Commissioner Gordon stated that he appreciates them for being here and thanked them for not 

increasing the bond amount. Commissioner Gordon stated that he would love to see the 
workforce study they mentioned if they can send it to him. Commissioner Pope stated that he 
is very proud of everything that Chemeketa has accomplished and thanked them for taking the 
time to come before the Board and share before the public what is happening. Dr. Howard 
stated that she can give some Polk County specific information about Chemeketa and she 
stated that they are able to issue Wi-Fi hotspots and wanted people to know that they have 
programs that are available completely online. Dr. Howard also shared some statistics for Polk 
County on education compared to Oregon rates.  

 
 

 
 
 
The following items were approved by Motion under 5. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

a) Polk County Contract No. 24-138, Central School District 
(Dana Goodale, Family & Community Outreach) 
 

b) Polk County Contract No. 24-139, Falls City School District 
(Dana Goodale, Family & Community Outreach) 
 

c) New Job Specification & Wage, Health Related Social Needs (HRSN) Program Coordinator 
(Matt Hawkins, Administrative Services Director) 
 

d) Local Alcohol and Drug Policy Committee Membership Appointment 
(Jodi Merritt, Community Corrections Director) 

 
e) Polk County Contract No. 24-140, Oregon Health Authority 

(Rosana Warren, Behavioral Health) 
 

f) Polk County Contract No. 24-141, Oregon Health Authority 
(Rosana Warren, Public Health) 



August 21, 2024 
Page 3 

 

  

There no need for an executive session and Commissioner Pope adjourned the meeting 
at 9:39 a.m.  
 
 

 

  
POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
       

        

 Craig Pope, Chair   
 
 

                                                       
    Jeremy Gordon, Commissioner 

        
                 
         
         Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner 
 
 
 
 
Minutes: Nicole Pineda  
Approved: September 4, 2024 



BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR 
POLK COUNTY, OREGON 

 
 

Proclamation in Support of National      ) 
Voter Registration Day 2024           ) 

 
PROCLAMATION NO.  24-04 

 
WHEREAS, National Voter Registration Day is a day to honor civic unity and an 

opportunity to set aside differences, enjoy the rights and opportunities we all share as 
Americans, and celebrate our democracy; and 
 

WHEREAS, voting is the foremost right and responsibility of citizens of the United States 
of America; and  
 

WHEREAS, for any democracy to work, all eligible citizens must have access to free, 
nonpartisan information on candidates and ballot issues and be able to vote for their elected 
representatives, without barriers, in free and fair elections; and 
 

WHEREAS, there are state and federal constitutional protections that ensure all eligible 
Oregonians have the right to vote, regardless of race, geography, ethnicity, disability or housing 
status; and 
 

WHEREAS, the State of Oregon requires eligible voters to be registered by Oct 15, which 
is 21 days in advance of our November 5, 2024 General Election; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, The Board of County Commissioners of Polk County Oregon, do 
hereby proclaim Tuesday, September 17, 2024, as:  
 

“National Voter Registration Day” in Polk County and encourage all citizens to 
participate in the many nonpartisan voter registration activities provided by the League of 
Women Voters of Marion/Polk Counties, to check your voter registration status, update it as 
necessary, and be prepared to make your voice heard and your vote count in the November 5, 
2024 General Election! 
 
 
  



Dated:  September 4, 2024 at Dallas, Oregon. 
 
       

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
     ___________________________________ 
     Craig Pope, Chair 
   
 

___________________________________ 
     Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner 
 
 
     ___________________________________ 
     Jeremy Gordon, Commissioner 
  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 



POLK OUNTY

Porr CouNrY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
POLK COUNTY COURTHOUSE * DALLAS' OREGON 97338
(s03) 623-9237

MEMO NDIIM

Board of Commissioners

Sidney Mulder, Planning Manager

August 26,2024

Plan Amendment (PA) 24-01 and Zone Change (ZC) 24-01

September 412024 Consent Agenda

AUSTIN M"GUIGAN
Director

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

SUBJECT:

ISSUE:

Should Polk County adopt the documents that would implement Comprehensive Plan
Amendment PA24-01 andZone Change ZC24'01?

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the Board of Commissioners adopt Ordinance Number 24-05, including
the Exhibits, thereby changing the Comprehensive Plan Map designation from Public to
Unincorporated Community Commercial and changing the Zoning Map designation from Public
and Privite Education Faciiities (PE) to Unincorporated Community Commercial General (UC-CG)
for an area approximately 0.3 acre in size.

BACKG IINI)
The subject property is identified on the Assessor's Map as T65, R5W, Section 23A,Tax Lot 100

and the adjaient ri[ht-of-way to the center line of West Perrydale Road and Perrydale Road,
which is located in unincorporated community of Perrydale.

The Polk County Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing on June 25,2024,
where an opportunity was provided for members of the public to submit oral and written
testimony. After conducting the public hearing, the Planning Commission passed a motion to
recommend that the Board6f Commissioners approve the application as recommended by staff,
subject to one (1) condition of approval.

On August 14,2024, the Board of Commissioners held a duly noticed public hearing, where- an
opportinity was provided for members of the public to submit oral and written testimony. The 

.

B^oard of iommissioners passed a motion to approve P A 24-01 and ZC 24-01 , as recommended
by the Planning Commission, subject to one (1)condition of approval that specifies the vision
ciearance standards found inPCZO Il2.l40 shall continue to apply to the subject property and
requires a non-remonstrance deed restriction.

Polk County Zoning Ordinance Section I 1 1.090(A) lists the effective date of the Official Zoning
Map. Zone'ChangeZC 24-01 would change the Official Zoning Map, and staff has included
within Ordinance Number 24-05 a text amendment to change the effective date of the Official
ZoningMap in PCZO 111.090(4.) to September 4,2024.

Upon adoption, Ordinance Number 24-05 would become effective 21 days after the mailing of
the decision.

1



DISCUSSION / ALTERNATIVES:

1. Adopt Ordinance Number 24-}5,including the lqqqgs included as.Exhibit A,qq4 ?-n

amendment to Polk County ZoningOrdinance (PCZCI) 111.090(4) included as Exhibit
B; or

2. Direct staff to amend and return to the Board for adoption; or

3. Other.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

No fiscal impacts to the County have been identified'

ATTACHMENTS:

Ordinance Number 24-05 with Exhibits

Exhibit A: Findings with Attachments

Exhibit B: Text Amendments to PCZO Chapter 111

2



I
2

J

4
5

6

7

8

9

l0
ll
l2
l3
t4
l5
t6
t7
18

t9
20
2l
22
23

24
25

26
27
28
29
30
3l
32

35

34
35

36
JI
38
39
40
4t
42
43

44
45
46

In the matter of Plan Amendment 24-01 and
Zone Change24-01: A Comprehensive Plan Map
amendment and a Zonrng Map amendment
for an approximately 0.3 acre area identified as
T65, R5W, Section 23A,Tax Lot 100 and the
adjacent right-of-way to the center line of
West Perrydale Road and Perrydale Road

ORDINANCE NO. 24-05

WHEREAS, on February 27,2024, applications Plan Amendment (PA) 24-0I andZone
Change (ZC)24-01were submitted by the applicant; and

WHEREAS, on June 18,2024, Planning Staff provided the Polk County_Planning
Commission with their Staff Report and issued a recommendation of approval for PA 24'01 and
ZC 24-01, subject to one (1) condition of approval; and

WHEREAS, on June 25,2024, the Polk County Planning Commission conducted a duly
noticed public hearing where an opportunity was provided for members of the public to submit
oral and^written testimony for Plannlng Files PA 24-01 andZC 24-01; and

WHEREAS, on June 25,2024, the Polk County Planning Commission considered all of
the testimony and evidence in the record and passed a motion to recommend approval for PA24-
01 and ZC24-0l,as recommended by Staff, to the Board of Commissioners; and

WHEREAS, on August 14, 2024, the Board of Commissioners conducted q du.lf noticed
public hearing where an opfortunity was provided fo_r_members-of the public to submit oral and

written testimbny for Planning Files PA24-0I andZC24-01; and

WHEREAS, the Board reviewed and considered all of the testimony and evidence in the

record and passed a motion to approve Planning Files PA 24-01 and ZC 24-01 , subj ect to one ( I )
condition oiapproval that is specified in Section III of Exhibit A; now therefore,

THE POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

Sec. 1. That Polk County adopts the findings for Plan Amendment PA 24-01 and

Zone Change ZC 24-01, as included in Exhibit A.

BEFORE THE BOARD OF'COMMISSIONERS
FOR THE COUNTY OF POLK, STATE OF OREGON

Sec. 2. That Polk County amends the Polk County Comprehensive Plan Map f9r
the property identified on the Assessment Map as T65? R5W, Section 23A,!a4lot 100 and the
adjdcerit rifht-of-way to the center line of West Perryd{e R_oa{ and Perryd.ale Road. The
C6mpreheisive Plan Map shall be amended from Public to Unincorporated Community-
Commercial. The total aiea to be amended is approximately 0.3 acre, as shown on Attachment B
of Exhibit A.

)
)
)
)
)
)
)

47
48
49
50
5l
52
53

Ordinance 24-05 Page I



Sec. 3 That Polk County amends the Polk County ZoningMap for theJvlap {o1
the property identified on the Assessment Map as T65: 8.5]M, Section 23A,la1l-ot 100 and the
adjaierit rifht-of-way to the center line of West Perrydale $oa$.a.nd l_egyda_Ig Road. The Zoning
M"ap shall6e amendld from Public and Private Education Facilities (P!) !o.Unincorporated ^ ^
Community Commercial General (UC-CG). The total area to be amended is approximately 0.3

acre, as shown on Attachment C of Exhibit A.

Sec. 4 That the vision clearance standards found in Polk County Zoning
Ordinance II2.l40 shall continue to apply to the subject property and the property gwngr s!aJ]

sign and record a non-remonstrance d66d-restriction (Attachment E of Exhibit A)^with tlq loJt ..
CSunty Clerk's Office that specifies the vision clearance standards found inPCZO 112.140 shall
continue to apply to the subj^ect property. The property owner shall pay the applicable. recording
fees. The prop^erty owner shall subririt a copy of the recorded deed restriction to the Planning
Division for inclusion in the record.

Sec. 5. Polk County amends the Polk County Zoning Ordinance (PCZO) text so

that the effective date of the Official ZoningMap listed under PCZO 111.090(4) is changed to
September 4,2024, as shown on Exhibit B.

Sec. 6 That Polk County determines that an emergency related to the economic
welfare of the citizens of Polk County is declared and this ordinance is effective immediately
upon passage.

Dated this 4th day of September 2024 at Dallas, Oregon.

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS

Craig Pope, Chair

Jeremy Gordon, Commissioner

Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner

Approved as to Form:

Morgan Smith
County Counsel

First
Second
Recording Secretary:

Ordinance 24-05 Page 2



EXHIBIT A

L REVIEW & DECISION CRITERIA

The applicable criteria for the proposed Zone-Chang.3nd. CorygrylglsivePlan Amendment are

listed under polk County Zoningbrdinance (PCZO) Sections 170.080, 111.27.5, and 115.050.

tffi;t;h;;" pio"irionr,"the Polf County Planning Commission conducts 1Prpll9 hearing *
puisuant to pczo r ii.i qo and I 15.03d and mukEs a recommendation to the Polk County Board

;f 6fti;rio*tr. ftte Polk County Board of Commissioners 9o-ndygts apybli.c hearing-

il;ilti;-pa/O 111.200 and 115.030 and makes a final local decision. The Applicant's
hndings and staff findings are provided in this section.

Findinss for ZC 24-0lz

l. CHANGING USE. Any area shown on the official zoning m,ap as a park, playground,
."t""i.w, ball park, fairgrounds, airport, school ol oth-elpublic or semi-public a-rea,

shall not be used foi any-other p,,rpose than that for which such area is used at the

effective date of the Pot"k Coun iy toning Ordinance, and whenever the use of such an

area is discontinued or proposed to be clanged, the Planning Commission shall
recommend to the noard oi Commissioners appropriate rezoning for any such area.

IPCZO 170.0801

Staff Findinqs: The subject property is currenlly zgteq Public and Private Education Facilities

@-) *iiffitCompiefrenri't e ptutt agsignatioir of Public; therefore, the subject property is

ioniidered an area sho*n on the officialZoning map as a school. The current pr_operty owner 
.

p;;;h;;A-th. ruUj"ri prop.tty g" March 25,1!22, a;_evidgnced by a Statutory Warranty Deed

iecorded in polk Co"riy 6ierL Do"lt-"ntzoZz-003753. The curreht property owner is proposing

loi.ar""fopment of thei piop.tty for uses thar are allowed under the Uninco_rygrated Community

Commercial General rue-iCl.'The UC-CG zone is not consistent with the Public

a;;i;;;ir;;rir. pt"r besignaiion;therefore, ttre apnlliuttt hgt also applied.Qr a Comprehensive

Plan Amendment to chang'e the designation'from PirUtic to Unincorporated Qgmryuqity ---
Commercial. Findings to iddress the-criteria for a zone change are addressed in Section III,
Subsections 2 and 3,"below. Findings to address the criteria for a Comprehensive Plan

Amendment are addressed in Section III, Subsection 4, below.

After conducting a public hearing that is scheduled for June 25 ,20?+, the Plannin.e Qoqpission"
will make a recdmmendation for-the appropriate rezoning of the subject Pr_gpgrty to the tsoard ot
Commissioners. Thi Board of Commiiiioners will conduct a separate public hearing that is

scheduled for July 24,2024, and make a final local decision.

2. AMENDING OFFICIAL ZONING MAP. A zone change is a reclassification of_any

area on the Official Zoning Map from one zoning designation to_anoth_er, after. the
proposeA change has been"revidwed and a recommendation made_by the Hearings
Officer or the flanning Commission. Such change shall be an ordinance enacted by.tle
Board of Commission&s after proceedings have been accomplished in accordance with
tfre provisions of this chapter. Annexation of territory to a city shall result in automatic
a*.rrdrr,"rrt of the Officiil ZoningMap as of the effective date of annexation. When the

Ofn"iuf ZoningMap is amended 6y orhinaoce o,r annexatio4 to- a c!ty' the Plannilg 
^-

Director shal 6ause the changes to be made to the Official ZoningMap. IPCZO I11.110]

Staff Findings: The applicant is proposing to amen{ the official z_oning.m.ap for an area

;pi-.ffifin0.j acr6'in size. The 6un"tit z.onfng designation is PE_and the pro.posed zone is

tit-CC. If approved by the Board of Commissioners, the Planning Director shall cause the

.trung.r to Ue maae on to the Official ZoningMap once the decision becomes effective.

3. ZONE CHANGE CRITERIA. Pursuant to Section 111.160, 
^ 

zone change may be

approved, provided that the request satisfie_s all applicable requirgle_nts of this
oidinutt..,'and provided that with written findingq the applicant(s) clearly demonstrate

Page I of 16



EXHIBIT A

compliance with the following criteria:

(A)The proposed zone is appropriate f91the comprehensive plan land use designlt-ion
on tlie pi.operty and is i6nsiitent with the pqqqolg qqq P9Li9i..1for the applicable
co-p"6h*tisive plan land use classification; [PCZO I I 1.275(A)]

Applicant's Findings: Applicant is concurrently pursuing a Comprehensive Plan designation

amendment.

Staff s Findings: The current Comprehensive Plan designation is Public (!Vq), which is

fipffi.*Giffinthe public zoning designations listed I;PCZO Chapter 170, including the.PE

ffi;. idtrop'osed UC-CC zoniig des-ignation implements the Unincorporated Community.-Co-."iriif 
tircCl Comprehensiv-e Plai designatibn. Therefore, the applicant has.also app[9q-

f";t;;d"ir;nsiie plan amendment to chan-ge the Comprehensive Plan designation from PUB

to UCC.

(B) The proposal conforms with the purpose statement of the proposed zone; IPCZO
1 1 1.27s(B)l
pURPOSE AND INTENT. The purpose of the Unincorporated Community
Commercial General (UC-CG) ZoniigDistrict is to implement^the Comprehensive
il'an policies related to commercial delebpmett by providing.foJ.a range of service

anA proOuct-oriented commercial activitiei. This zone is applied to commercial
landi within unincorporated communities.

The intent of the UC-CG ZoningDistrict is to provide for commercial developmen^t

in unincorporated communitiesl Commercial activities in this zone generally consist
of uses which complement agricultural and forest activities in the surrounding area'
uses which serve tfie needs oT the surrounding community or the needs of the
traveling public, or other uses which are small-scale and low impact.IPCZO
147.0101

Applicant's Findings: The purpose of the UC-GC zone is to implement Comprehensive Plan

iffi-"'ciul^d"uelopmentbyproviding?y'g9ofservicesandproduct-'-"ii."i.O 
""mmercial 

activities in unincorpotated communities. Commercial activities within the

UC-GC zone generally complement the unincorporated community, serve the needs of the

Community oitravelirig pubiic, and offer other uses that are small-scale and low impact..
Applicantbroposes to iezone the property to UC-GC to allow for the redevelopment of the

pr^o'p.rty fdr uies that are allowed uniler ihe UC-GC and likely small-scale and low-impact,
i;;firafis;n.h ur.r inPCZO 146.040(C) aydPCZp 146.040(C). By conforryjlelo ttre allowed
ur"r in tf,e UC-GC, Applicant's ptopoiaiwill conform to the purpose of the UC-GC and this

criterion is met.

Staff Findinss: As discussed above, it does not appear that the subject property is currently being

Ci;imr ilt$ecific purpose, and fhe structures are either cqrelt_ll bJtlg dismantled, o+?ve-
U..n i..""ity i"-ou"d/d'emofished. Uses that are allowed in the UC-CG are specified in PCZO

Chapter l4i, whichalso references certain uses listed inPCZO Chapter 146 and 145. If
uppt'*eO, any future development would be limited to the use;_thlt are permitted in the UC-CG
ibhe. Future development would also be subjectto all applicable- development standards.(i.e.

r.tUacLr, parking, landscaping, etc.), which would furthbi limit the-scope of future uses that

could be'dstabliiiied. For thesl-reasons, staff finds that the proposal conform to the purpose and

intent of the UC-CG zone, even though a specific developmenl proposal is not being reviewed at

this time.

(C)The uses allowed in the proposed deqignation-yit-!.lot significantly adversely affect- -allowed 
uses on adjacent lands; IPCZO nL.27s(C)l

(D)Adequate public facilities, services, and transportation networks are in placeo or are, ' planned to be provided concurrently with the development of the property; IPCZO

Page2 of 16



EXHIBIT A

111.27s(D)l

impact uses not result in
The UC-GC allowed uses are by their nature, lower
burden on public services, transportation, or
used for puiUtic education, residential, commercial, orsurrounding properties

are otherwise vacant.
Adjacent lands are

potential impacts from Applicant's proposed use could include additional lrips at the intersection

6;i;ih;ilisi no offsite impacts are anticipated. No impacts are anticipated that would rise to the

level of significant to adveisely impact public education, residential, or commercial uses.

Accordingly, this criterion is met.

vicinity of the subject property.

The subject property is located within the area served by-Perrydale. Domestic. Water Association

ipDWdl; howeier,'PDWA provided comments stating that water is not available for the qubjegj
pi"p.tti.'Although.this review is not intended to evaluate a specific development proposal, gtaff
hnds that the UCICG zone does allow for some uses that would not necessarily require on-site

potaUte water, such as a greenhouse, farm product storage, or a seasonal farm stand. Staffalso
hnds that installing a dritking watei tank dnd having a contract with.a potable ry?t9r provider
routO pot."tially b"e allowed ior so-e commercial uies, but ultimately this would be determined

by the'Polk Cotinty Building Official and would likely be dependent on how many people are

oir-site and whether or not tEe use was considered temporaryor permanent. In any case, b-ecause

the UC-CG zone allows for uses that do not necessarily require on-site potable water, staff finds
that the proposed zone change would result in the subj-ect property having the potential to be put

to a beneficial use that the current PE zone precludes.

The Polk County Environmental Health Divisionprovided co_mments stating that due to the size

of the subject pioperty and lack of usable area,itis unlikely that an onlsile sgptic_ 1y^s19.m 
could

be approv"ed in aicordance with Oregon Administrative Rules (Qnn; 340-071-0150(4).
However, some commercial uses allow for holding tanks if the site and use meets the
requirements found in OAR 340-071-03a0(1Xa)'

Among other criteria, OAR 340-071-03a0(l)(a) specifies that permanent, small-scale
commErcial uses can be served with a holding tank when the projected sewage flow is not more

than 200 gallons per day. The applicant has not proposed any specificfuture development al this
time. Nev"ertheless, staff finds thit the UC-CG zbne permits small-scaled commercial uses that

could be scaled to not exceed 200 gallons per day. For example, the UC.-CG zone permits
various types of commercial officei, but tfiis design flow limitation could reduce the number of
offices uni o"".tparcy, assuming ali other development standards were also met. Other types of
uses allowed in ii\e UC-CG may not require an on-site septic system, such as a greenhouse or
seasonal farm stand.

Staff finds that on-site potable water and the lack of available space for an on-site septic system

Page 3 of 16



are both limiting factors to future use(s) on the subject property. However, these.limiting factors

would ensure thit any future development would b-e smallln scale and is not anticipated.to

rignin.untty adverseiy affected surrounding properties. Ultimately, the applicant would have to

de"-onsttut6 that all ailplicable development itandards were met prior to the issuance of any

future building permits.

EXHIBIT A

The application complies with these criteria'

(E) The proposed change is appropriate taking into consideration the following: [PCZO
l1l.27s(E)l
(1) Surrounding land uses,

(2) The density and pattern of development in the 
^ren,

(3) Any changes which may have occurred in the vicinity to support the proposed
amendment. [PCZO rl 1.27 5(E)( 1 )-(3)]

Applicant's Findings: The property is located at an intersection in the middle of-thg incorporated

i@Itisnedrbyotherdevelopedpropertie.s,mostlycomprisedofsimilaror
i;#rp;...tr. i.ronitrg the property to commdrciai us-e will allow for its redevelopment and put

it b"ack^into productive ise to seive ihe community, offering Polgntial office space, storage space,

or other typi of commercial building for a busineis to.occupy. The future use would be

r".p"tiUiJwith ttre surrounding pu6q9 education, residential, or commercial uses, as it would be

simiiar to the active uses in the ir'ea. There is other commercial zoned land near the Perrydale

intersection and this proposed zone change offer an opportunity to revitalize an otherwise vacant

corner. This criterion is met.

Staff Findings: Staff reviewed the Polk County Zgniygmap and 2022 aerial imagery, and

confrrmfiJh-at the applicant has accurately described ihe subject property and surro_unding area

as Oiscussed above, the unincorporated community of Perrydale is approximately 68 acres.in

size and contains a mixture of reiidential, public, iirdustrial, and commercial zoned properties..

ffr. ruU;."t property abuts Perrrydale school towards the south and west, which is a small rural
school serving lrad"es K-12. Suriounding properties towards the north and east are zoned SR,

generally ran[e"in size from approximat6ty O.S-: acres, and are developed with single-family
Iesidences. T[e minimum pa.i,6l size for SR zoned properties within an unincorporated
community is 1.0 acre; theiefore, additional parceliZation and residential development could
potentially occur in the vicinity of the subject property.

The Polk County Public Works Department provided comments expressing. concerns about how
the proposedzone change could create a siglrt distance issue for traffic driving.along y.esl^_^
ferryaite Road and teriydale Road. Specifically, the vision clearance standards found inPCZO
l12:140 would no longei be applicabld which pievents any structures, signs, fencing, retaining
walls, etc. from being built within the vision clearance setback area.

The vision clearance standards found inPCZO lI2.I40 states:

VISION CLEARANCE AREA. In the SR Zone or any public zone, the vision clearance
areafor corner lots at street intersections shall have a minimum of 3}-foot legs along
each"street andfor alley-street intersections in said zones, the vision clearance area

Page 4 of l6



EXHIBIT A

shall have legs of a minimum of ten (10) feet along both alley and street. The vision
clearance ar-ea ihail not contain any plantings, walls, structures,,or temporary 9r
permanent obstructions to vision eicieding i0 inches in height above the curb level,
-or 

street shoulder where there is no curb, except a supporting pillar or post not
greater than l2 inches in diameter or l2 inches on the diagonal of a.rectangular
"pftto, or post; andfurther, excepting those posts 91 s-uppqrting members of street
'iigrt, stieet lights," and traffic contiol signi instailed ai directed by the department of
puOltc worl<s,br any other sign erectedfor public safety.

Vision clearance shall not be required at a height of seven (7) fegt or more above the

curb level, or seven (7)feet, six(6) inches aboie the shoulder ofa street that does not
have a curb.

This section shall not be construed as waiving or altering any yard requirements or
setback requirements that may be required by this or any other ordinance.

The vision clearance standard only applies to properties within the Suburban
Residential (SR) zone and all pubiic 2ones. Stafffinds that the proposed zone change

would result

Staff concurs that the vision clearance area standard found inPCZO 112.140 is currently
applicable to the PE zone, but would not be a-pplicable togep_r9P.T^e{v,9. cG zone. The

d^evelopment standards for the UC-CG zone fbund inPCZO 112.400(C)(6) states:

(6) CONDITIONS IMPOSED WHERE ZONE CHANGE TO CG OR UC-CG
ZONE ABUTS RESIDENTIAL ZONE. In any zone change or reclassification
of property to the CG qnd UC-CG Zones where the territory proposed to.be.

iho"ged dbuts upon a residential zone, or abuts u?grya stye_e_t-olQley which ,
,oui-d be the boundary line between the proposeci CG and UC-CG Zones and
the residentiql zone conditions to preserve ieighborhood qualities may be

imposed by the Board of Commissioners relating to:

(a) Size and location of signs;

(b) Size, type and location of outdoor lighting;

(c) LandscaPed areas;

(d) Screening;

(e) Building setbaclcs; and

O Ingress ond egress for commercial uses'

If any of the above conditions are imposed they shall be placed in the deed records

of the County.

As discussed above, the subject property abuts residential zoned properties.towards the north and

west; therefore, the Board of Commissioners could choose to imp,os_e condition(s) to preserve

neighborhood qualities related to (a) through (f) listed above. Staff finds that the concerns raised

Uy itre Public Works Department d're valid an4lt tt important to consi4er the potential impacts
tliat the proposed rone change could have at this interiection, esp_e_cially given the proximity to
an existing ichool and surro[nding residential zoned properties. Without the imposition of the

vision cleirance standard, fences ind free-standing signs up to six (6) feet in height could be_

constructed on the northeastern corner property lines,-which could create a safety hazard to the

traveling public and/or pedestrians walking to and from Perrydale S.chool.-For these reasons,

staff finld that a deed restriction to continue the imposition of the vision clearance standard
found inPCZO ll2j40 is warranted. Staff recommends a condition of approval that the
property owner shall sign and record a non-remonstrance deed restriction (Attachmenl E) with
ttre potl County Clerkt Office that specifies the vision clearance standards found inPCZO

Page 5 of 16



II2.I40 shall continue to apply to the subject property. The property owner shall pay the

upptiruUt" recording fees. tie-property o'i'ner shill sirbmit a_copy. gf-tlre^lecorded deed

r6siriction to the Plinning niviiion foi inclusion in the record of ZC 24-01.

Many of the uses allowed in the UC-CG zone are intended to serve the needs of thecommunity
unJJurrounding area. The subject property is sited at an intersection near the central portion of
the unincorporited community, whicfiwould prwide a convenient location for future
d"u.lop-"nt to seru" the Perrydale communtly. Ttt. vision clearance area should be maintained

io pi"riiu. the neighborhood [ualities; specifically, the safety qualities tha! a v^ision clearance

riu"raura provides."Staff finds itrat ttre p.oposal would proviie an opportun]p for the subject

piop".ty io be put to a future beneficiai us-e to serve the rural community of Perrydale.

With the above recommended condition of approval, the application complies with these

criteria.

(F) The proposal complies with any applicable int-ergoverng:l9la.g.r.eql94.Pertaining
to u.^nut growth bbundaries and ufbanizable land; and IPCZO 111'275(F)]

Applicant's Findings: To Applicant's knowledge, no such agreements exist for Perrydale.

Staff Findings: Perrydale is an unincorporated community of Polk County. There are no

apttttmEntergovernmental agreements that pertain to the subject property.

The applicant complies with this criterion'

(G) The proposal complies with Oregon Revised Statuteso all applicable statewide' 'planriing goals and associated administrative rules. If an exceqtion to one or more
if tne gd'als is necessary, the exception criteria i1_O-1gg9n Administrative Rules,
Chapter 660, Division 4 shall apply. IPCZO lll.215(G)l

Applicant's Findings: The property is already zoned for non-resource use and located within an

@d community. No exceptions are required.

Staff Findings: Staff has addressed each of the Statewide Planning Goals below.

Goal 1 - Citizen Involvement: Citizen involvement ls advanc^ed by providing appropriate notice

@ntonthisapplication.Noticeofthescheduledpublichearingsanda
request foi .o*-"nts has been mailed to irea prgperty qwngrs and.post"d * a publicly... 

.
ac6issible website in compliance with the Polli Counfy Zoning Ordinance. This Goal will be

complied with throughout this process.

Goal 2 - Land Use Planning: This Goal provides the flex_ibility in land use planning by allowing

@rcertainciicumstances.AGoalexceptionisnotproposedor
required for this application.

EXHIBIT A

tural 4 - Forest The subject property is an acknowledged

exception area where these goals not apply

S_ According to the Polk
County Resources Area map, subject property does not contain inventoried Goal

5 resources.

Goal 6 - Air. Water and Land Resources Ouality: Staff it !9,t aware of any impacts that future
icdqualities.Therearenoinventoriedairorwater

or land resources of significance identified on the subject property. This Goal is complied with.

Goal 7 - Areas Subject to Natural Hazards: The subject property is not located in an area that is
subject property is located outside of the FEMA

Special Flood Hazard Area, and Polk County does nothave evidence to suggest that the subject
pioperty is in an area at risk of landslides or wildfires.

Goal 8 - Recreational Needs: The subject property is not designated in the Comprehensive Plan

Page 6 of 16



as an area intended to provide public recreational opportunities, nor would it create increased

demand for recreational land.

Goal 9 - Economic Development: The proposed amendments would allow for limited
wou1dprbvideeconomicdeve1opmentandpossible

employment opporiunities thut are not currently afforded under the cunent Plan designation.

This proposal is consistent with Goal 9.

Goal 10 - Housinq: The subject property is located_outside an urban growthbounQrY in a.'orural

Crvfta;dter" un-incorporat"ed c6mmunity. The UC-CG_zone permits a.single-family dwelling;
ho*.u"r, a dwelling would not be permitfed to be served by.a septic holding tank. Consequently,

the applitant's profosal would not affect the supply of housing in the Perrydale Unincorporated

Community.

Goal 11 - Public Facilities and Services: Future development would be limited to those uses that
on.sitesepticsystem;or,uSesthatcorrldbe-servedbya

septic holding tint<s inO delivered potable water. These development standards would ensure

it it att f"ture"development is smali in scale. Future developmant that did not comply with Goal

11 would not be permitted. This Goal is complied with.

Goal 13 - Energy: Any redevelopment of the subject prop_e{y ypql4 be subject to any apPlicable

AfigfioaffiAetermined by tli- Polk County Iiuilding-Official. This Goal is complied with.

Goal 14 - Urbanization - The subject property is locatedwithin a designated unincorporated 
^^

@aryofthe"communitywouldnotbeaffected.Theproposaldoesnotaffect
an urban growth boundary. This Goal is complied with.

EXHIBIT A

: These Goals are not applicable to-18 River
as the exception area is not neat or im by the Willamette River or anY of

the Ocean Goals.

The application complies with all Statewide Planning Goals and a Goal exception under OAR 660-

004 is not required.

(H) The road function, classification, capacity and existing an_d projected traffic' 'volumes 
have been considered. To allow comprehensive plan map and zone map

amendments that may generate trips up to the planned capacity of the
transportation system,lolk County will consider road function, classification, road
capacity and existing and projected traffic volumes, as criteria for comprehensive
plan mip and zone map amendments. IPCZO 111.275(H)l

Applicant's Findings: The property is abutted by two public^roadways. Tle redevelopment of 
^

@houlilnotresultintripst1iatwouldaffectthecapacityorfunctionalityof.
th'e'existing iranspoitation system. The prop^erty is about one-quarter an acre and the anticipated
developmjnt is airticipated io be relativblyiowimpact and small square footage given the need

to accommodate septic, water tanks, and parking onsite.

Staff Findings: The subject property is a corner parcel with frontage along W-est Perrydale.Road
towardJme. north and frirntale aion! Perrydale Road towards the east. According to the Polk

Page 7 of 16



are both
S

as or Collectors

EXHIBIT A

Figure 3, West Penydale Road and Perrydale Road

f indinss PA24-0lz

While the UC-CG zone allows for many different types of uses that could generate a significant

umouniof iraffic, such as a bus terminal, grocery store, or amusement services, many of those

;;;;;";td;.q"ii. a conditional use permlt and-the sudect property is not large enoughlo meet

uff O.u.fop-.ttt rt*dards (i.e. setbacls, parking, on-sit-e septic-system, etc.) to support those

types of uies. Redevelopmdn! of the- subj-ect propgrty. would require the pro.perty owner to

ddmonstrate that all appiicable development standards could be-mel-through q conditional use

p;ilitil7oi *o"ra'Ut, met prior to tire issuance of any future building permits for the intended

use.

It is more likely that any future redevelopment of the propg_rty would be limited to uses that are

i.*porury in nature, rui,tt ur a seasonal fbrm stand, ofsrnatt scaled uses that could-be served.by a

;;pil; J;'dg" d"k;d pumping contract, and delivery of potable water. The UC-CG zone also

ffi;it;-i;fi-riunAt un.i gr"i,nh6uses, which are uses ihat would likely no require on-site potable

water or permanent restroom facilities.

For these reasons, staff concurs with the applicant's findings tlat fut91e development would not

"ir."iirr. "ipu"iy 
oi functionality of Perryh-ale Road or West Perrydale. Road. Approval of this

pr"p; roi. .ti*ge would not authorizetheproperty owner to establish a use that would
exceed transportation caPacitY.

4. CRITERIA FOR NON.LEGISLATIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS. A NON-IEgiSIAtiVE

plan amendment may be approv,ed provided that the request !s pal-ed on substantive
information providing a factual basis to support the change. It is.th-e applicant's
responsibitity to proni-id" the information nicessary to determine if the request meets the
pertinent criteria.

(A) Amendments to the Comprehensive Plan Map must meet one or more of the' ' 
following criteria: IPCZO 115.050(A)l

(1) The Comprehensive Plan desigqa_tign js e_ry9.199us and the proposed amendment' - 
would coirect the error, or [PCZO 115.050(AX1)]

(2) The Comprehensive Plan Designation iq 1o]qn^ggl lpPlgPliate due to changing' ' conditioni in the surrounding area; and IPCZO 115.050(AX2)]

Applicant's Findings: The property is located on the corner of an active rural county road
ffiontdgebn6othWPerrydaleRoadandPerrydaleRg?d.Ithasbeenzoned
FE i; years and never o*tr-"d by a school or put topublic education use. Thus, the property has

L..n *iO.tdeveloped for years. Applicant oums and invests in commercial and industrial
properties througfiout the County.-Applicant acquired this property after seeing its
ied6velopment p"otential. Appliiant ieeks to_amin{l\. pro-perty's gomp plan designation from P

to C to ficilitat6 rezoning th6 property to UC-CG. This will allow the property to be put back to

productive economic use-aftei siftingunoccupied and unattended for years. This criterion is met'

Staff Findings: According to the historic zoning map dated December 4,l975,,the subject ..
property andThe neighboiing Perrydale Schoolproperty were previo_usly ?oleg SR. According to

lttr'ionlttg map datei Deceriber 10, 1980, the subjbct property.and Perrydale S9!9ol property's
zoning de"signation was changed to PE. Historic deed iecords demonstrate that Victor and

Oorttr! Brofrn purchased the-subject property on March 23,1972 and Victor Brown owned the
ptop.tty until March 25,2022,whenit was Jold to the current property owner. Based on these

ii"h retotas, staff concurs wiih the applicant and finds that there is no evidence in the record to

demonstrat" ihut Perrydale School, oi iny public or private school, has ever owned the subject
property. The subject property was ownedby Victof and Dorthy Brown when the property's

Page 8 of 16



EXHIBIT A

zoning designation was changed from SR to PE.

Staff also reviewed Polk County Community Development records, Clerk records,,and 
-

Assessor's records and found no evidence of the subj-ect property ever being used for school

dtp;;;;,;r teaseO by a public or private school. Ba-sed on these records, staff finds that the

Ful'ii. co.npr"n."r#e pian designation is erroneous. The.proposed Unincorporated Community-Co--ri"iuidesignation 
would ionect this errorby redesignating the site to allow for the

redevelopment of the site to be put to a beneficial use.

(3) The purpose of the Comprehensive Plan will be carried oullh_rgggh^approval of
the froposed Plan Amendment based on the following: IPCZO I l5'050(A)(3)l

(a) Evidence that the proposal conforms to the intent of releva_nt goals and policies' ' 
in the Compreheniive Plan and the purpose and intent of the proposed land
use designation. IPCZO 1 1 5.050(A)(3)(a)l

Citizen involvement:

Goal 1.5 Polk County will provide notice to those citizens that may-be affected
by proposed and adopted l-and use decisions and actions including but not
liinited to: amendmeits to the comprehensive plan and implementing
regulations, zone changes,land use-determinations, variances, conditional use

peimits, dwelling appr-ovals, land divisions and subdivisions.

Goal2.1 Polk County will prepare and make available to the pubtig upon- 
-

request clear and concise iirfolmation reports, and supporting findings of fact
and conclusions of law to citizens regarding County land use decisions and
actions.

Goal2.2 Polk County will, as required by law proyidg public- notices of
proposed and approi'ed land use decisions that sufficient and concise
information to 6riable citizens to provide timely, informed comments. IPCCP
Section 2l

Applicant's Findines: The County's land use review will include_the opportunity.for public 
.

@,andpubficengagementbeforeboththePlanningCommissionandthe
Board of County Commissioners.

Staff Findings: Notice of the scheduled public hearings and arequest for.comments has been

mafta to alra property owners and post'ed on a publiily accessi6le website. A copy of the staff
refort will be avaiiabl"e for inspectio-n, or copies-can be obtained, and will be posted on the

p,iUti.ty accessible website at ieast seven (7) days prior to each public hearing.

Economic Development:

Goal L. To achieve a rate or pattern of economic activity which; will relieve
chronically high levels of unemployment and underemployment.

Goal2. To provide an atmosphere conducive to economic activity with an
emphasis on private sector activity. IPCCP Section 2]

Applicant's Findings: This application will help facilitate redevelopment of an underutilized,
ffiommeiiialopportunitiesinthefuture,includingnewcommerceand
employment potential.

Staff Findines: The proposed UCC designation would provide for th^e opportunity-to.establish
ffi;omilrcial usesihat the current FUn designation does not afford. Although this site has

development constraints, future uses could provide limited employment opportunities, including
in the private sector.

Goal5. To provide for and maintain a viable economy while preserving the

Page 9 of l6



present sense of community and high level of environmental quality.

Policy 1.1 Polk County will favor the development g{ e-cono-mic activities which
will frovide jobs ableio utilize the skills of the local labor force.

Policy 1.2 Polk County will encourage the provision of economic opportunities
in or near areas of high unemployment.

Policy 3.1 Polk County will coordinate with public agencies and concerned
citizens in encouraging a diversified economy and employment base in order to
reduce or avoid relianie upon one sector of economic activity.

Policy 4.4 Polk County will encourage tlre concentration of industries of
similir types, performance characteristics and service needs.

Policy 5.1 Polk County will encourage_commercial uses to locate within
existin g m unicip alitiei, urban growth b orf nd aries' gllln_co r_po rated
commrinities arid existing rural commercial areas. IPCCP Section 2]

Applicant's Findings: This application offers the opportunity to support the Perrydale economy

i@ercialopportunitiesthatcouldutilize-aloca[workforceskillsetwhile
i&uirr F.iyAale's community iharacter. Applicunl anlicilates the commercial opportunities
pi""ia.A UV the future commercial project will diversi$'.the economic activity in Perrydale 

.

ionsistent *it6 ttt. County's policy to iocate commercial uses within existing unincorporated

communities.

EXHIBIT A

e

Community.

Unincorporated Communities Plan Element:

Goal4. To provide for opportunities for development in unincorporate.d
communiti6s while prev6riting development that would exceed that ability of
the area to provide ilotable w-ater, wastewater management, or transportation
services. IPCCP Section 2]

Applicant's Findines: Applicant's future commercial project will not exceed Perrydale's ability
i@er,wastewater,ortransportationservices.Thefuturecommercia|gr9j99t
*iit UuitO new on-site *ut". and sanitary systems. The Applicant proposes to use.tanked drinking
*ut.i suppty until water is available thrbugh Perrydale Domestic Water Association. The future

ro*-rriiuiuse should not result in trips t[at imp-act the capacity or functionality of the existing
transportation system as the anticipated development is expected to be low impact.

Staff Findines: As discussed above, future uses would likely be limited to uses that either do not
r€dffi anJfi{ite septic system or potable water; or, scaled-uses within the limitations. of using a

ppti" holding tank dnd d6livered pbtable water. In either case, the UCC. plan designation and

UC-CG implEmenting zone allowi for small-scale uses that do not reqrlire potable water or
wastewatefmanagem-ent, and would not have impacts on the-existing Countyroad syste-.Any
future developmeit wouid be required to demonstrate that all applicable development standards

were met prior to the issuance of any building permits.

Goal5. To provide for and maintain a viable economy while preserving the
present sense of community and environment.

Policy 1.3 Polk County will only permit those uses in un_incorporated
communities for which it can be clearly demonstrated that such uses: a.

Contribute to the well-being of the community; b. Do not seriously interfere
with surrounding or adjacent activities; c. Are consistent with the identified

Page l0 of l6



EXHIBIT A

function, capacity and level of service of facilities. [PCCP Section 2]

Applicant's Findings: This application will help facilitate a futurecommercial'project that 
.

ffieriainrbt.y1.3becausetheexpecteddevelopmentwillrespondtothe
icbiio*i" needs of the community, will complement surrounding uses,_andwill be low impact...-

Moi"ou.t, the future commercial project wili provide on-site *?tef and-sanitary systems and will
use tanked drinking water supply until water is available through Perrydale Domestic Water

Association.

Staff Findings: Staff finds that the UCC plan designation_and UC-CG zone would allow the

ffiirtiirffiy to be put to a future ben'eficial usE, which the current plan designation and zone

pr.ilud6r. Theimalt size of the property would be the mo_st limiting factor forfuture
Sluefop-ent possibilities. Ultimateiy, iion-site septic and water are not available, a greenhouse

or seasonal faim stand may be the only uses that could be establlshed on this prgP.efy. F'ven so,

those uses would contribuie to the weil-being of the community by providing additional small-

scale development potential to serve the surrbunding rural area community.

Policy 1.6 Polk County shall ensure that new uses authorized within
unincorporated communities do not adversely affect agricultural or forestry
uses. IPCCP Section 2]

Applicant's Findings: This application will not adversely gffect agricultural or forestry 9111
i@urrenti'developedanddesignatedPrivateEducationalFacilities(PE).
Staff Findines: The subject property is not contiguous wjth py properties thalSre zoned for
agrffildrai;r forestry irres, utrA thl nearest_farm operation is approximately 275 feet south

iJ*utOr ihe south, on the east side of Perrydale Roid. Staff finds-that any new uses established

on ttre subject property would have a significant buffer distance between neighboring farm and

forest operations.

Policy 1.7 Polk County shall ensure that the cumulative development within
unincorporated communities will not:

a. Result in public health hazards or adverse environmental impacts that
violate state or federal water quality regulationsl and,

b. Exceed the carrying capacity of the soil or of existing water supply
resources and sewer services. [PCCP Section 2]

Applicant's Findings: This application will result in neither public health hazards or adverse

;@snorexc.eedthecarryingcapacity9{tliesoilorofexisting.watersupply'
and sewer servicei. The future commerciaiproSect is anticipated to be relatively low impact and

small square-footage to accommodate the onsiie water and sanitary systems. Apnlicant proposes

to use tinked drink'ing water supply until water is available through Perrydale Domestic Water

Association.

Staff Findings: Future uses would likely be limited to uses. that either do not require an on-site

sept6 s)'stern or potable water; or, scaled uses within the limitations of usinga septic holding
tank anil delivered potable waier. In either case, any future development would be required to

demonstrate that ali applicable development standards were met prior to the issuance of any

building permits.

Policy 1.10 Polk County shall allow commercial and industrial uses within
uniniorporated communities in accordance with the provisions o_f Oregon. 

-

Adminiitrative Rule OAR 660, Division22, the Unincorporated Communities
Rule. [PCCP Section 2]

Applicant's Findings: This application will help facilitate a commercial use that is consistent
ffi0etsiQ.Thefuturecommercialprojectwillprimarily^provideforthe
retail sale of products or services, including office. The anticipated commercial use will not

Page ll of16



EXHIBIT A

include factories, warehouses, freight terminals, or wholesale distribution centers. See OAR-660-
022-0010. The future commeicial f,roject will be small scale, low impact 9s9,,qd will serve the

community and/or support the traveleis passing through the area. See OAR 660-022-0030(4).

Staff Findings: The proposed UC-CG zonethatwould imp]eryeqt tL" 9-9C_p]an.designation is in

Ampiiarlcffih the provisions of Oregon Administrative Rule OAR 660, Division 22,the
Unincorporated Communities Rule. PCZO Chapter 147 includes small-scale low impact

development standards, which limit the size of structures.

Transportation:

Goal 2. To develop and assist in the development of a safe, convenient, and
economic transportation system available to all persons. [Polk County TSP
(200e)l

Applicant's Findings: The anticipated commercial project will be gerved by the existing 
.

@Theredev^elopm9ntof-{pnlr.ca$,spropertyshouldnotresultintripsthat.
*ool'd uffect th6 capacity or functionality of thd i:xisting tianiportation system given the limited
site square fo otage 

-and 
potential development fo otprint/envelop.

Staff Findines: Due to the site's small size and limitations of uses that could be served by.a.

Ci;iit6iaffi-rank and/or delivery of potable water, staff_finds- that any future uses established

on'ttt. subjecT property would be imali in scale and would not have a significant impact on the

existing transportation system.

Land Use Plan Designations. Unincorporated Communitv Commercial:

It is the intent of the Unincorporated Community Commercial Plan
designation to protect existing employment and provide limited employment
opportunities for some of the residents living in and nearby unincorporated
communities. [PCCP Section 4]

Applicant's Findings: This application will help facilitate a future commerciaf Rroject that will
@ortuniiiisthatmaybefiliedbyresidentsofthePerrydaleorneighboring
community members.

Future commercial use(s) could provide limited employment opportunities for
Perrydale Community.

(b) Compliance with Oregon Revised Statuteso statewide pla-nning goals and' ' related administrative rules which applies to the particular property(s) or
situations. If an exception to one or more of the goals is necess_aryn the-
exception criteria in Oregon Administrative Rules, Chapter 6600 Division 4

shall apply ; andlPCZO 1 I 5.050(AX3Xb)l

Applicant's Findings: The property is located in an unincorp-o_rated community and already
ffieusewiihcommunitywaterservices.NoexceptionSareneceSSary.
Staff Findings: Staff has addressed each of the Statewide Planning Goals below.

Goal I - Citizen Involvement: Citizen involvement is advanc-ed by providing appropriate notice

@ntonthisapplication.Noticeofthescheduledpublichearingsanda
request for comml,nts has been mailed to area property owners and posted ol a plblicly... 

.

aciessible website in compliance with the Polli County ZoningOrdinance. This Goal will be

complied with throughout this process.

Goal2 - Land Use Plannine: This Goal provides the flexibility in land use planning by allowing

@rcertainciicumstances.AGoalexceptionisnotproposedor
required for this application.

Staff Findings:
residents in the

subject property is an acknowledgedGoal 3 - Asricultural Lands and Goal 4 - Forest Lands: The

Page 12 of 16



EXHIBIT A

exception area where these goals do not apply.

- According to the Polk

County Resources Area map, subject property not contain inventoried Goal

5 resources

- Air w
USES have on air, water land resource q
or land resources of significance identified on the

area that is
FEMA
the subject

Goals Ri These Goals are not applicable to
this application as the
the Ocean Goals.

area is not near or impacted by the Willamette River or any of

The application complies with all Statewide Planning Goals and a Goal exception under OAR 660-

004 is not required.

Page 13 of 16

Goal 8 - Recreational Needs: The subject property is not designated in the Comprehensive Plan

@epublicrecreationaioppor1unities,norwoulditcreateincreased
demand for recreational land.

Goal 9 - Economic Development: The proposed amendments would allow for limited
wouldprbvideeconomicdevelopmentandpossible

imptoyment opporiunities that are not currently afforded under the current Plan designation.
This proposal is consistent with Goal 9.

Goal 10 - Housine: The subject property is located outside an urban growthbound3V in a."rural
Grvil-entA; unincorporated c6mmu.rity. The UC-CG zone permits a-single-family dwelling-;

hi*rrr.r, a dwelling would not be permitGd to be serv_ed by.a septic holding tank. Consequently,

the apptbant's profosal would not affect the supply of housing in the Perrydale Unincorporated
Community.

Goal 11 - Public Facilities and Services: Future development would be limited to those uses that
;on-sitesePticiystem;or,uSeSthatco-uldbe.servedbya
septic holding tdnks and delivered potable water. These developmgnt standards would ensure

itrit utt future"development is smali in scale. Future development that did not comply with Goal

11 would not be permitted. This Goal is complied with.

Goal 12 - Transportation: In2012, changes were made to tllg Oregon $iglwry^Plan (OHP), and

@lanningRule.fhosechangesprovidea..safeharbor',forautomatic
compliance wiih Goal 12 wherithe propos_al {qel not-rlcrease the average daily trips (ADT) by

more than 400. When evaluated together, the TPR and OHP exempt Planamendments that
would generate less than 400 ADT-from further TPR review as they are classified as a small
increasE that does not further degrade the transportation facility. As discusse{ 3bo.ve, uses within
the UC-CG zone could potentiafly generate a high traffic v,olume, but_not at this site due to
property being less than a ll3 acie ln size. Stafffinds that future development of the property
woutO 6e far 6elow the "safe harbor" figure of 400. This Goal is complied with.

Goal 13 - Enerey: Any redevelopment of the subject prope{y ygq!{ be lubject to any apPlicable
afigfiode, as [etermined by the Polk County Building-Official. This Goal is complied with.

Goal 14 - Urbanization - The subject property is located withil a designated unincorporated 
^^

@aryofthe'comhunitywouldnotbeaffected.Theproposaldoesnotaffect
an urban growth boundary. This Goal is complied with.

Staff is not aware of any impacts that future
ualities. There are no inventoried air or water
subject property. This Goal is complied with.



EXHIBIT A

(c) Compliance with the provisions of any lPPlic_able intergov_ernpe_"-tul' ' ug.e"-ent pertaining to urban growth bbundaries and urbanizable land.

IPCZJ 11s.050(AX3Xc)l

To 's knowledge, there are not applicable agreements for
unity.Perrydale, an

Staff Findings: Perrydale is an Unincorporated Community within Polk County. There are no

applicable iritergovernmental agreements that pertain to the subject property.

The applicant complies with this criterion.

II. ADDITIONAL FINDINGS

On July 3l,2024,written comments were providqd to:l J. Kevin Shuba with Garrett Hemann

Robertson ir.C., who is representing Perrydale School District Nq. 21 (District). Comments
provided r"qu"it that the board of eommis_sionersdeny this application andasserts that the

irroposal is f) contrary to the intensions ofPerrydale community planning; 2) limits the
property's potential use; and 3) increases risks for students.

Contrary to the intensions of Perrydale community planning:

Comments state that the cunent designations were made for the purpose of allow!18 th9*- 
.

."ptili;; of Perrydale School, and'i'hen the subject property w-as designated PUB and PE in
19'80, the intent #as to pave the way for Perrydal-e's school expansion. Mr..Shuba did not
iAentity which applicable review and decision criteria these comments are intended to address,

but stalfTassume^sihey are related to criteria found inPCZO 115.050(4)(1), which states:

(A) Amendments to the Comprehensive Plan Map must meet one or more of the following
criteria:

(l) The Comprehensive Plan designation is erroneous and the proposed amendment would
correct the error; or

comm

Staff finds that there is no evidence in the record to support the claim that the PUD and PE

designations from 1980 were intentional for the pultlose of expanding Penydale School. The

curr6nt property owner acquired the property froq lictor Brown, who owned tfe sybj$
property from tvtarch23,lg72 until March 25,2022. Wr{tgn testimony states that the District
has'off6red to purchase ihe subject property and that the_District intends to acquire_ the subject
property. In any case, the subje"ct piop6rty is not currently owned or used !l a-public or private
ichbol,'and there is no evidence oT any commitments or legal obligations for the cunent property
owner to sell or allow for Perrydale School to be expanded.

PCZO 170.080 states:

Any area shown on the official zoning map as a pqrk, Pl?yground, cemetery, ball park,
faiigrounds, airport, school or other puUtii or semi-public. area, shall not be_usgd for any other
putiore than thit for which such areb is used at the effective date of the Polk County Zoning 

.
b.d'inun.", and whenever the use of such an area is discontinued or proposed to be changed, the
Planning iommission shall recommend to the Board of Commissioners appropriate rezoning for
any such area.

Since the subject property has never been used as public space or owned by a public entity, staff

Page 14 of 16



finds that there is substantial evidence in the record to demonstrate that the Public
Comprehensive Plan designation, which is implemented by the PE zone, is erroneous.

Staff finds that the subject property's size would not be feasible for residential or industrial uses,

theiefore, a commerclil zoire 'ivouiA be most appropriate zone even if future commercial uses

would be-limited in scale and size, and would irbt accommodate all uses that are permitted in the

UC-CG zone.

Limits the property's potential use:

Comments were provided stating that if the District were to acquire this property, it would allow
i;ihtF;ribiliti of expanding ihe school's playground, creating recreational space, or allowing
room for -or" "iasrooms. 

Aidiscussed above,-there is no evidence in the record of any

commitment or legal obligations for the current property owner_to convey the subject property to

the District. Therjfore, this application shoulA nbt bt predicated on the assumption that the

District would own the subjefi property in the future. If ultimately the District did acquire the.

rrUjl.f ptop.rty, then the Oirttict wouia have the right to apnly for and pursuea Compfehensive
plair eriren'dment and ZoningMap Amendment to c-hange the designations back to PUB and PE.

Written testimony further states that uses available fgq thg proposed designations would be

extremely limitetl due to the size and not being suitablg foi.an on-site septic system, and not
having u"".5 to water. These concerns were addressed in the staff report, and.at th9 Planning

Comriission public hearing the applicant's representative recognized the fact that these are

limiting factors for future uses.

Written testimony disagrees with stafls findings thgt tlre proposed designations would benefit
the community aird its Economy, and asserts th;t this claim ryay have more merit if the owner

fiad a specific development proposal. Staff finds that the subject property is currently-vacant o.f

uny rttii"tures and is irot cutt"n^tly put to any beneficial use. There is no evidence in the record to

ru!1g.rt that the property owner ii 6bligated to sell or lease the property to the District; therefore,-

stafffinds that this ipplication should iot be predicated on the.assumption that the District would
o*n th. subject prop'"tty in the future. Staff finds that the applicable review and decision criteria
does not requireitre applicant to propose a specific 

-use?_s-o 
the analysis is focused on whether or

not any usei allowea iri ttre UC-dG 2one could be feasible. The proposed designations would
allow ihe property owner to put the subject property_to a^beneficial use, even tltgyg!_s:tt ^
constrainti arid d6velopment standards wouid nbt allow for all uses allowed within UC-CG zone.

Increases risks for students:

Written testimony asserts that future uses may increase the flow of traffic in an area that does not

have sidewalks oi crosswalks for children moving to and from school, even with the vision
clearance restrictive covenant. Staff previously addressed traffic in the staff reqort and found that

the existing transportation networks ire sufficient because the subject property.'s small size, lack

of on-site i'otablei water, and insufficient area for an on-site septic system would limit the size

and type of development that could ultimately occur. An approved access permit from the Polk
Cou"tj'Public Woiks Department would be iequired prioiio issuing any future building permits.

Comments provided assert that because the subject property is contiguous to. the school's
playgroundi, with only a chain-linked fence as 

-a 
baniei, that an influx of unknown adults on the

iuUlict propetty wouli make it more difficult for Perrydale School staff to control interactions
betweeri visitois and students. Staff finds that there is no evidence in the record to support this
claim or to demonstrate that schools abutting commercial zoned properties pose an increase of
danger to children.

EXHIBIT A

III. ATTACHMENTS

Subject Property MapAttachment A:

Page l5 of 16



Attachment B:

Attachment C:

Attachment D:

Attachment E:

Comprehensive Plan Map (CurrentlProposed)

Zoning Map (Cunent/Proposed)

2022 Aerial Photograph

Deed Restriction for Vision Clearance Development Standards

EXHIBIT A

Page 16 of 16



SUBJECT PROPERTY MAP ATTACHMENT A

75OO PERRYDALE RD

300

400

11010 BETHEL RD

600

7450 PERRYDALE RD

300

100
SUEJECT

6.5.23ATL 100

(Approx.0.3

(Perrydale School)

7445 PERRYDALE RD

11065 WEST PERRYDALE RD

Date:611312024
This map was produced from the Polk County geographio databases
to support its govemmental activities. This product is for infonnational
purpoies andhay not have been prepared for, or be suitable for legal
bngineering, or surveying purposes. The county is not responsible for

any map errors, possible misuse, or misinterpretation'
To report a map error, please call (503)623'0713.



ATTACHMENT B
STAFF MAP (PA 24-01)

11010 BETHEL RD

4

7450 PERRYDALE RD

300

100
SUBJECT P

6.5.23AT1100

0.3

11065 WEST PERRYDALE RD 600

CURRENT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN DESIGNATION: PUBLIC

PROPOSED COMPREHENSIVE PLAN DEISGNATION

UNINCORPORATED COMMUNITY COMMERCIAL

(Perrydale School)

7445 PERRYDALE RD

I

Date:511712024
This map tvBs p.oduced ftom ths Polk County geogrephic daiabas8s

to -ppdtt its gototntntntal activiues. Tbis Producl.'ts fcr.inbrmational
puilJes ano-mav not harrE been ptgpared hr, or b€ suilaH€ lor legal

Endn"t,ing" orsurveying purposes The @unty isrol respotsible br
.rf map enors, possible misuse' or misinlsrprEtatbn.
To-report a map eror, please call (503)623-0713.



ATTACHMENT C
STAFF MAP (ZC 24-A1)

300

7500

40

11010 BETHEL RD

600

7450 PERRYDALE RD

300

100
SUBJECT P

6.5.23ATL 100

(Approx.0.3

puBllc AND PRIVATE EDUCATION FACILITIES (PE)

PROPOSED ZONING DEISGNATION :

UNINCORPORATED COMMUNITY COMMERCIAL GENERAL

CURRENT ZONING DESIGNATION:

(Perrydale School)

7445 PERRYDALE RD

11065 WEST PERRYDALE RD

I

Dale:511712024
Thb map was produced fiom the Poll( County geographb databases
to support its gbvemmenl,al aclivilies. ThF produd b br.infrfmational
purpdes andhay not ha\te been prapated for. or be suibble br legal'

engineering, or surveying purposes The county is not responsible for
any map enors, possible misuse, or misinterpretation.
To report a map error, please call (503)623-071 3.



2022Aerial lmagery ATTACHMENT D

Date:611312O24
This map was produced from the Polk County geographic databases

to support its governmental activitbs. This product is lor infornrational
purposes and-rnay not have b€en prepared for, or b€ suilable frcJ lef'al,

engineering, or surveying purposes' The county is not responsible for

any map errors, possible misuse, or misinterptetiation.
Toieport a map error, please call (503)623-071 3.



ATTACHMENT E

RESTRICTWE COVENANT
Owner: SRC Management LLC

Location : tll:Titfi,T :";ffi 3t {," 
^*Lor 

1 00

Be it known to all that the undersigned, being tt. t.gut owner(s) of the real property described below' hereby

consent and covenant as follows:

In recognition of the fact that the subject pro^perfy was approved for a Zoning Map Amendment to change the

r**.;'"t1?f'#;#,:',1*Snfu-S{ls$,$:H;l#ifjfi''*:?l1l,:*';:*11?],:?'J;J#:::il;n':'1
i,i,'"j iii p6tk c;;;taning ordinance I l2' 140' which states:

vlstoN CLEARANCE AREA. 11 q!r9 sn Zone or any py^blic^zone' the vision clearance area for

corner lots at street intersections shalt nu"- i *itiitrili tifiO'f*t lees along each street and for

allev-street intersections in said zones' ttre vision ciearance ut*u ti"tTftuue i-egs of a minimum of

ten (tO) feet along both alley and street. iil;i;fialearance.area shall not c--ontain any plantings'

walls, structures, or temporary o, prrtun.ni#ffi;d;Jo uiiion exceeding 30 inches in height

;il;; id;uru r;"i, liltrl"f ,rloiiru"r-*t;;"-;ilerI6;;-curb,.exceptffl[t"i#i;fi,#tlT;{r!,Tli"'
;;;#i]illiil"l;'-i;oi"*"i"' or l2 inches on the diagonal

fufther, "*.rpr,ngi."J.;'r;rd';;;";p&i;;;;i"it 
of tTtttt signs' street-lighti' and traffic control

signs instalteo * oiiI"i.["r;y th;;;'ffi;;il;$fiiil;;*;7ni ott'"' siln eiected for public

safetY.

Vision clearance shall not be required at.a height 9f se.ven.(-)-feet or more above the curb level' or

seven (7) f""t, ,i*'i6j'il;dt-ffi;; ir|" irt"iiiaEi of a street that does not have a curb'

This section shall not be construed as waiving or altering ?.l{-Iutd 
requirements or setback

t*quii"*"ntt that may be required by this or any other ordlnance'

Legal DescriPtion:

This covenant shall be binding upon the undersigned.and their heirs, successors' and assigns as a covenant

ffift';i,li';ili;;;;';H:;"# f;lf .;;ti and/or as otherwise noted above'

Owner(s) Signature Printed Name(q) Address

2

State of Oregon )
County of Polk ) ss

On 20-,before me a notary public personalty appeared by above-named

and acknowledged the

foregoing instrument to be a voluntary act and deed'

AFTER RECORDING, RETURN TO: Community Development Department Polk county courthouse, Dallas'

Oregon 91338

\\Earthwoll\cRoUP\coN,{MDEV\PLANNING\Plan.Zchg\2024\PA24.01 
&"zC'24.01\PC\DEED RES''RICTIoN (2C24-o|).tJoc

This space

Reserved

For use by

the Polk CountY

Recorder

My Commission ExPires:

Before me:

Notary Public of Oregon



EXHIBIT B

Amendment to polk County ZoningOrdinance Chapter 111. Proposed text additions are double

undcrbned. Proposed deletions are stril€threr*gh.

1TT.O9O. OFFICIAL ZONING MAP.
(A) The Official Zonins,Map adopted with an effective date of May4-,-W4.+Bt lobq\'^'/ 

{;02i:;;itG;t fi eli6tronil mqn lay911v'1lT H. Pol.\ Qo14tr geographic

ffitttration system (GIS) at a scale of 1:24,000. The OfficialZonlngMap shall be

maintained Uy ttre Planning Director. [Amended by Ordinances ll-02, l1-04, 12-06, 13-03, 18-03, and

2a-0d^twl24=951



POLK UNTY

Porr CouNrY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
POLK COUNTY COURTHOUSE * DALLAS' OREGON 97338
(s03) 623-9237

MEMORANDUM

Board of Commissioners

Eric Knudson, Senior Planner

August 27,2024

Update to the Polk County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan

Wednesdav. Serrtember 4. 2024 Consent Calendar

Natural

AUSTIN M"GUIGAN
Director

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

SUBJECT:

BACKGROUND:

Natural hazardmitigation is the development and implementation of activities designed to.reduce
or eliminate lossds i6sulting from natural hazards. In2000, FEMA issued the Disaster Mitigation
Act of 2000. Under the Disister Mitigation Act of 2000, communities, states, and tribal
governments must complete FEMA-ipproved natural hazard mitigation p_lans to be eligibl: for
iertain federal assistanie programs su-ch as theHazard Mitigation Grant Program and the Pre-

Disaster Mitigation Grant Program.

RECOMMENDATION:

Hazard Mitieation Plan.

ISSUE:

Should Polk county adopt by resolution the updated Polk count)' Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard
Mitigation Plan?

Polk County obtained an Emergency Management Performance Grant to develop the Polk
Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan in July 2003 The County completed the Polk County

January 2006.

Mi AS

plans for the es located within Polk
Hazard Mitigation Plan that identified

In January 2017, Polk County updated the 2009 Polk N
Mitigation Plan. This
vulnerability analysis,

update included a county- wide comprehensive assessment and
potential funding sources, and community based mitigation actions for

individual jurisdictions within Po lk County

\\Earth\voll\GROUP\COMMDEV\PLANNING\NHMP (Hazard Planning)\2O23-2024 NHMP update\BOC Resolution and

Adoption\Resolution\BOCme mo8 -27 -24.doc



Natural hazards present a threat to public and private propgrty in Polk County, as well as to the

health and safety of the County's residents. To minimize risk of harm to humans,-prope.rty and/or
the economy, itis vital to continue to plan for the occuffence of potential natural hazards.

As part of the planning process, Polk County organized aHazard Mitigation Plan Steering
Committee dedicated [oidenti$inghazardthreats and developing actions that can be taken to
mitigate damage and life losses from those threats. Notable changes incorporated into the2024
Plan-include minor changes to the plan's organization and text, updatedhazatd risk and
vulnerability assessment, the addition of an extreme heat hazard section, and amendments to
andlor removal of existing mitigation action items.

The update to the Po N is the result
of a collaborative planning effort between Polk County, local cl ,P County residents,
public agencies, and federal, state and regional organizations.

Polk

\\Earth$oll\GROUP\COMMDEV\PLANNING\NHMP (Hazard Planning)\2023-2024 NHMP update\BOC Resolution and

Adoption\Resolution\BOCmemoS-27 -24.doc 2



DISCUSSION / ALTERNATIVES:

1. Adopt the updated Polk County Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan by

the passage of Resolution24-10.

2. Do not adopt the updated Polk Countli Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan at this

time; or

3. Other, as described by the Board of Commissioners.

@:
Costs associated with staff time and copying of materials. There are no additional costs for the

2024Planbeyond the implementation iostsllready iryqrgd by the^existing Plan for ongoing

action items. No other fisial impacts have been identified for Polk County.

ATTACHMENTS:

ATTACHMENT A - Resolution24-10, including the updated Polk Counlv Multi-
Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan as an exhibit.

\\Earthwoll\GROUP\COMMDEV\PLANNING\NHMP (Hazard Planning)\2023-2024 NHMP update\BOC Resolution and

Adoption\Resolution\BOCme mo8-27 -24. do c J



ATTACHMENTA

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR

POLK COUNTY, OREGON

In the Matter of AdoPting )
The Updated Polk CountY )
Multi-Jurisdictional Natural )
HazardMitigation Plan )

RESOLUTION NO. 24.10

WHEREAS, Polk County recognizes the threat that natural hazards pose to

people, property and infrastructure within our community; and

WHEREAS, undertakinghazard mitigation actions will reduce the potential for

harm to people, property and infrastructure from future hazatd occuffences; and

WHEREAS, an adopted Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan Q'trHMP) is required as

a condition of future funding for mitigation projects under multiple FEMA pre- and post-

disaster mitigation grant programs; and

WHEREAS, Polk County fully participated in the FEMA prescribed mitigation

planning process to prepare this NaturalHazards Mitigation Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Oregon Department of Emergency Management and Federal

Emergency Management Agency, Region X officials have reviewed the Polk County

Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan and pre-approved it (dated, July 1,

2024) contingent upon this official adoption of the participating governments and

entities; and

WHEREAS, the NHMP is comprised of three volumes: Volume I -Basic Plan,

Volume II - Appendices, and Volume III - Jurisdiction Addenda, collectively referred to

herein as the NHMP; and

WHEREAS, Polk County directs the Polk County Emergency Manager, or their

designate, to develop, approve, and implement the mitigation strategies and any

administrative changes t" the Polk County Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazard

Mitigation Plan.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Polk county Board

of Commissioners:

1. polk County hereby adopts the Potk County Multi-Jurisdictional Natural

Hazard Mitigation Plan as an official plan included as Exhibit A; and

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\NHMP (Hazard Planning)V023-2024 NHMP update\BOC Resolution and

Adoption\Resolution\RESOLUTION 24- I 0.doc



ATTACHMENT A

I
2

J

4

5

6

7

8

9

l0
l1

t2
13

l4
l5
t6
t7
18

t9
20

2l
22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

2. Polk County will submit this Adoption Resolution to the Oregon Office of
Emergency Management and Federal Emergency Management Agency,

Region X offrciali to enable final approval of the Polk County Multi-

Juris dictional Natur al Hazar ds Mitigation P lan'

3. polk County determines that an emergency related to the economic welfare of
the citizens of Polk County is declared and this ordinance is effective

immediately upon Passage.

Dated: September 4,2024 at Dallas, Oregon.

POLK COLTNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Craig Pope, Chair

Jeremy Gordon, Commissioner

Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner

Approved as to Form:

Morgan Smith
County Counsel

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\NHMP (Hazard Planning)\2023-2024 NHMP update\BOC Resolution and

Adoption\Resolution\.RESOLUTION 24- I 0.doc



ATTACHMENTA

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR

POLK COUNTY, OREGON

In the Matter of AdoPting )
The Updated Polk CountY )
Multi-Jurisdictional Natural )
HazardMitigation Plan )

RESOLUTION NO. 24.10

WHEREAS, Polk County recognizes the threat that natural hazards pose to

people, property and infrastructure within our community; and

WHEREAS, undertakinghazard mitigation actions will reduce the potential for

harm to people, property and infrastructure from future hazatd occuffences; and

WHEREAS, an adopted Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan Q'trHMP) is required as

a condition of future funding for mitigation projects under multiple FEMA pre- and post-

disaster mitigation grant programs; and

WHEREAS, Polk County fully participated in the FEMA prescribed mitigation

planning process to prepare this NaturalHazards Mitigation Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Oregon Department of Emergency Management and Federal

Emergency Management Agency, Region X officials have reviewed the Polk County

Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan and pre-approved it (dated, July 1,

2024) contingent upon this official adoption of the participating governments and

entities; and

WHEREAS, the NHMP is comprised of three volumes: Volume I -Basic Plan,

Volume II - Appendices, and Volume III - Jurisdiction Addenda, collectively referred to

herein as the NHMP; and

WHEREAS, Polk County directs the Polk County Emergency Manager, or their

designate, to develop, approve, and implement the mitigation strategies and any

administrative changes t" the Polk County Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazard

Mitigation Plan.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Polk county Board

of Commissioners:

1. polk County hereby adopts the Potk County Multi-Jurisdictional Natural

Hazard Mitigation Plan as an official plan included as Exhibit A; and

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\NHMP (Hazard Planning)V023-2024 NHMP update\BOC Resolution and

Adoption\Resolution\RESOLUTION 24- I 0.doc



ATTACHMENT A

I
2

J

4

5

6

7

8

9

l0
l1

t2
13

l4
l5
t6
t7
18

t9
20

2l
22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

2. Polk County will submit this Adoption Resolution to the Oregon Office of
Emergency Management and Federal Emergency Management Agency,

Region X offrciali to enable final approval of the Polk County Multi-

Juris dictional Natur al Hazar ds Mitigation P lan'

3. polk County determines that an emergency related to the economic welfare of
the citizens of Polk County is declared and this ordinance is effective

immediately upon Passage.

Dated: September 4,2024 at Dallas, Oregon.

POLK COLTNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Craig Pope, Chair

Jeremy Gordon, Commissioner

Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner

Approved as to Form:

Morgan Smith
County Counsel

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\NHMP (Hazard Planning)\2023-2024 NHMP update\BOC Resolution and

Adoption\Resolution\.RESOLUTION 24- I 0.doc




